
HAYS AREA BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING AGENDA 
CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 1507 MAIN, HAYS, KS 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
8:15 A.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN. 

2. CONSENT AGENDA. 

A. Minutes of the regular meeting of  December 9, 2015   

 Action:  Consider approving the minutes of the December 9, 2015 meeting.            

3. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS. 

           A.   Public hearing on a request from Hays Medical Center for an eight foot variance to 
reduce the required front yard setback for a monument sign from ten feet to two feet 
at 2509 Canterbury Drive. (Case #13-15) 

                  Action:  Consider approving a request for an eight foot variance to reduce the 
required front yard setback for a monument sign from ten feet to two feet on the 
property at 2509 Canterbury Drive.                  

4. NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS. 

           A.   Variance request from James and Shawn Mulkey for a two foot variance to reduce 
the east side yard building setback from the required seven feet to five feet and 
reduce the distance between structures from the required five feet to one foot to 
construct a 15 foot by 20 foot carport at 210 E 17th Street. (Case #01-16) 

                  Action:  Consider setting a public hearing for a two foot  variance to reduce the east 
side yard building setback from the required seven feet to five feet and reduce the 
distance between structures from the required five feet to one foot to construct a 15’ 
x 20’ carport at 210 E 17th Street. 

          B.  Request from Brent & Jill K Goertzen for a two and one-half foot variance to reduce 
the east side yard building setback from the required seven and one-half feet to five 
feet to construct a 20’ by 24’ shed at 1310 W 44th Street (Case #02-16) 

                  Action:  Consider setting a public hearing for a request for a two and one half foot 
variance to reduce the east side yard building setback from the required seven and 
one-half feet to five feet to construct a 20’ by 24’ shed at 1310 W 44th Street.      

5. OFF AGENDA ITEMS/COMMUNICATIONS.         

A. None 

6. ADJOURNMENT.  

 

 

Any person with a disability and needing special accommodations to attend this meeting should contact the 
Planning, Inspection and Enforcement office (785-628-7310) 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting.  



 

 1

DRAFT  
HAYS AREA BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS  

COMMISSION CHAMBERS IN CITY HALL  
MINUTES  

DECEMBER 9, 2015 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:      The Hays Area Board of Zoning Appeals met at their regularly 
scheduled meeting on Wednesday December 9, 2015 at 8:15 a.m. in Commission 
Chambers at City Hall                      
 
Roll Call: 
Present:           Lou Caplan 
                                            Gerald Befort  
                                            Jerry Sonntag 

 Tom Lippert 
                                           
Absent:                               Rich Sieker 
 
City Staff Present: Assistant City Manager, Jacob Wood, Jesse Rohr, Superintendent and 
Linda Bixenman, Administrative Assistant of Planning, Inspection and Enforcement. 
                                 
2. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
A.  Minutes:   Jerry Sonntag moved, Gerald Befort seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes from the November 12, 2015. There were no corrections or additions to those 
minutes.   
 
Vote:  Ayes:        Lou Caplan 
                                          Gerald Befort  
                                          Jerry Sonntag 

Tom Lippert                                           
 
3.      PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS:    
 
A.  CASE #09-15 - PUBLIC HEARING FOR A VARIANCE REQUEST FROM DAN AND JENNIFER 
HECKER TO REDUCE THE DISTANCE BETWEEN STRUCTURES FROM 5’ TO 2 ½’, AND A FOUR 
FOOT FIVE INCH (4’ 5”) VARIANCE TO REDUCE THE SIDE YARD BUILDING SETBACK FROM THE 
REQUIRED SEVEN FEET (7’)  TO TWO FOOT SEVEN INCHES (2’ 7”) TO CONSTRUCT A 10’ x 16’ 
STORAGE SHED AT 316 E 6TH STREET. Jesse Rohr presented a power point presentation with 
the information, location (corner of 6th and Allen) and site plan of the property for the 
above case on the overhead visual.  There is an existing detached double car garage 
with an entrance to the side.  The proposed shed would be between his home and the 
neighboring home to the west that is approximately 5 ½ feet to 6 feet from its property 
line.    



 

 2

He explained that anything built less than 3 feet from the property line would be looked at 
differently.  It would be considered an extreme variance. 
 
He explained that it would be tough for staff to recommend the variance.  He suggested 
that the board can discuss other options with the applicant.   The board has the authority 
to offer a lesser variance but not a greater variance than requested. 
 
Dan Hecker came before the board to explain the importance of the variance that would 
be needed for the size (10’ by 16’) of shed that would meet his needs and also be built in 
a wasted space in his yard to keep the other side of his yard.   He has visited with his 
neighbor that had no problem with it.    
 
Lou Caplan stated that this is more of an extreme variance than any they have ever 
granted on a side yard that would set a bad precedence to build that close to the 
property line.  He explained that property owners change over time. 
 
Tom Lippert explained that when the board makes their decision they have to take into 
account how this may affect the property and neighboring property in the future years 
from now.   His concern was the precedence this would set particularly the close proximity 
between structures is a fire concern.  It would not meet the fire code that ensures  
separation between structures so the nearby structures have a fighting chance if there is a 
fire.  
 
Jerry Sonntag concurred that he would not want to set precedence with the close 
proximity between structures and the side yard.   He asked if the proposed shed was 
prebuilt.  He explained that there were other options to consider a smaller shed.   
 
Mr. Hecker asked if he would need to come before the board to build an 8 foot by 15 foot 
shed. 
 
Jesse Rohr explained that if the shed is 120 square foot or less that the regulations allow 
the shed to be 3 feet from the side yard property line. 
 
Jerry Sonntag stated that he would consider a one foot variance to reduce the 
separation distance from the required 5 feet to 4 feet to construct the 8 foot by 15 foot 
shed.    
 
Lou Caplan asked for comments from the audience.  There were none. 
 
Jerry Sonntag moved, Gerald Befort seconded the motion to grant a one foot (1’) 
variance from the required separation of five feet (5’) to four feet (4’) a lesser variance 
than requested between the proposed structure and primary structure for construction of 
an 8’ X 15’ shed, a smaller shed than proposed on the property at 316 E 6th Street based 
on the consideration it does meet the five statutory requirements.  
 



 

 3

No variance was granted for the side yard building setback.  
 
Vote:  Ayes:        Lou Caplan 
                                          Gerald Befort  
                                          Jerry Sonntag 
      
 Nay:                              Tom Lippert                                           
 
Mr. Hecker asked if he needed a permit for the 8 x 15 shed.  Jesse Rohr answered that he 
would not need a permit for this size of shed.   
 
B.  CASE #10-15 – PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE REQUEST FROM BERNARD H WERTH FOR AN 
EIGHT FOOT (8’) VARIANCE TO REDUCE THE FRONT YARD BUILDING SETBACK FROM THE 
REQUIRED THIRTY-FIVE FEET (35’) TO TWENTY-SEVEN FEET (27’) TO CONSTRUCT A SHED ON 
2015 GENERAL CUSTER ROAD.  Jesse Rohr presented a power point presentation with the 
information, location (south of 22nd Street on General Custer) and site plan of the above 
case on the property at 2015 General Custer Road.  It is a triangular, irregularly shaped 
vacant lot.  It is a proposed 3 tiered building and each corner of the building would 
encroach into the front yard building setback by 8 feet.   There were survey pins to 
accurately measure for the proposed building on the site.  
 
He explained that staff recommends the variance be approved based on the hardship 
present for such an irregularly shaped lot.  
 
Lou Caplan expressed this was good use of available infill property on a uniquely shaped 
lot where not many things could go in there.  
 
Lou Caplan asked if there were any comments from the board or audience.  There were 
none.   
 
Tom Lippert moved, Gerald Befort seconded the motion to grant the variance as 
submitted based on the consideration it does meet the five statutory requirements.   
 
Vote:  Ayes:        Lou Caplan 
                                         Gerald Befort  
                                         Jerry Sonntag 

Tom Lippert                                           
                                            
C.  CASE #11-15 – PUBLIC HEARING FOR A REQUEST FROM LUECKE PROPERTIES LLC FOR A 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT AS REQUIRED BY ORD. SECTION 71-504(16) TO ALLOW THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF RENTAL STORAGE UNITS WITHIN THE “C-2” GENERAL COMMERCIAL & 
SERVICE DISTRICT LOCATED AT 780 E 41ST STREET. Jesse Rohr presented a power point 
presentation with the information, location (North of I-70, east of Home Depot) and site 
plan of the property for the above request at 780 E 41st Street.  He explained the board 
had previously approved a special use permit for the construction of rental storage units 



 

 4

on the property in the years of 2013 and 2014 with the expectation they would request the 
same for future storage units.   The first special use permit was granted with conditions that 
has been met that they be built appropriately and a perimeter fence erected around the 
existing structure.  
 
This time the request is for a special use permit for any additional storage units they may 
build on this property.  They propose to use the next storage units for private use that 
would not require a special use permit; although sometime in the future it may be 
converted to rental storage units.  
 
The site construction has developed in an orderly manner and fencing around the 
perimeter of the area.  Staff feels the current request for additional storage units may be 
approved with no new conditions imposed.   
 
Staff recommends a special use permit for additional storage units due to several factors 
including adequate protection of adjacent properties, and no known invasion of 
inappropriate uses.   
 
Jerry Sonntag asked about the boundaries of that property for the proposed units since it 
is located within a larger tract.   
 
John Lueke, representing Luecke Properties, explained that the tract is 4 acres; although 
they are using only a part of it for the storage units.  The proposed storage units would be 
built within the boundary of the existing storage units.   The tract may be split someday.  
They do not plan to use the property south of the existing southern most structure.  
 
Jesse Rohr explained to the board they could add a condition that any new storage units 
would have to be built north of the boundary starting from the southern most existing 
storage unit on the property.   
 
Tom Lippert asked what kind of timeframe before the private unit would be converted to 
a commercial rental storage unit.  Mr. Luecke answered that if there are any unused stalls 
in it, they would like to use it as soon as they can for commercial rental storage units.  The     
remainder of the storage units within the 45’ X 100’ building would be determined by time 
and money.  The proposed plans are for another 45’ X 100’ storage rental in the spring 
and the remainder, 30 foot wide units, be built a year from now.  They would be the same 
color and same trim package as the others.   
 
Lou Caplan asked if there were any comments from the audience.  There were none.   
 
Jerry Sonntag moved, Gerald Befort seconded the motion to grant a special use permit 
requested by Luecke Properties LLC to construct commercial storage units at 780 E 41st 
Street allowed per Section 71-504 (16) within a “C-2” General Commercial and Service 
District with a special use permit subject to a defined boundary using 60 feet from the 
southern most existing storage unit as the southern most boundary line.   



 

 5

Vote:  Ayes:        Lou Caplan 
                                           Gerald Befort  
                                          Jerry Sonntag 

Tom Lippert  
                                          

 Lou Caplan acknowledged to the applicant that the property is very well kept.                               
 
D. CASE # 12-15 PUBLIC HEARING FOR A VARIANCE REQUEST BY DAVID RANDA FOR AN 
OFF-PREMISE ADVERTISING SIGN TO BE LOCATED WITHIN 35 FEET OF THE FRONT PROPERTY 
LINE ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1104 E 22ND STREET.  Jesse Rohr presented a power 
point presentation with the information, location  (south of 22nd, east of VFW) and site plan 
for the request by the applicant for a variance to allow an off premise sign to be located 
on the island adjacent to the front parking lot of the property within the 35 feet front yard 
building setback.  An on-premise advertising sign can be located within the 35 foot front 
yard building setback and right up to the property line without a variance; although this is 
to allow an off-premise sign to advertise the on premise business and adjacent off-premise 
tenants, thus the reason for the variance request.   
 
The purpose of the variance is to allow this sign to advertise the on-premise business and 
the adjacent businesses on the back that do not have street frontage.  
 
He did receive a call from the owners on the east and west side of the property to inquire 
about the variance request.  He explained the reason for the variance request to them. 
 
City Staff have no concerns with the request as submitted.  There are no concerns of the 
site distance of the proposed location of the sign and no concerns about the businesses 
to the back of the property using the sign to advertise their business. 
 
Tom Lippert asked if the sign would be closer to the street than the neighboring sign to the 
west.  He also asked if placement of the sign met the standards not to block traffic visibility 
when exiting the property.  David Randa, owner and applicant, explained the location of 
the sign.   
 
Jesse Rohr explained that no sign can encroach into the right-of-way space that provides 
visual distance for an exit; there is a buffer between back of curb and the property line.  
 
Lou Caplan asked if the sign would be placed at the same distance from the street as the 
neighboring sign to the west (Knoll Clinic).  Jesse Rohr answered that the neighboring 
business chose to set their sign back further within the front yard building setback.  The sign 
company has taken these sight differences into consideration to prevent blocking either 
of the signs.   
Lou Caplan asked if a variance would be required under the proposed new development 
code.   Jesse Rohr answered that he would look into this for him.   
 



 

 6

Gerald Befort moved, Jerry Sonntag seconded the motion to grant the variance request 
as submitted to allow an off-premise advertising sign to be located within the 35’ building 
setback on the property at 1104 E 22nd Street based on the consideration it meets the five 
statutory requirements.     
 
Vote:  Ayes:        Lou Caplan 
                                          Gerald Befort  
                                          Jerry Sonntag 

Tom Lippert                                           
 
4.      NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS:  
 
A.  CASE # 13-15  PUBLIC HEARING FOR A VARIANCE REQUEST FROM HAYS MEDICAL CENTER 
FOR AN EIGHT FOOT VARIANCE TO REDUCE THE FRONT SETBACK FOR A MONUMENT SIGN 
FROM TEN FEET TO 2 FEET ON THE PROPERTY AT 2509 CANTERBURY DRIVE: Jesse Rohr 
presented a power point presentation with the information, location and site plan of the 
property for the above case on the overhead visual.  The applicant is requesting an 8 foot 
variance to place a monument sign two from the from the front property line rather than 
the 10 feet as required per regulation in a “C-O” Office and Institution Zoning District on 
the property at 2509 Canterbury Drive. 
 
The base of the monument sign has already been built two feet from the front property 
line.  When the owners submitted a full set of plans for the building permit, there was a 
misunderstanding that it included the sign; although signage requires a separate review 
for a permit. 
 
The property is currently under construction with a substantial addition and a remodel of 
the existing facility.  The frontage of the property is also being redone with a new drive 
approach and new parking.  The proposed monument sign (8 ½ feet long, 5 feet in 
height) would be similar to the others along Canterbury and it would be located about 60 
feet north of the existing sign.  
 
Jesse Rohr stated that to meet the front yard setback, the sign would be approximately 8 
feet further back when compared to the other monument signs along Canterbury.  
Variances have been granted for some of these signs in the past.   
 
He pointed out that the “C-O” zoning district is the only commercial zoning district 
requiring a front yard setback for signs; the other commercial zoning districts do not 
require a front setback for this type and size of sign.  
 
He stated that staff recommends setting a public hearing to set the sign as proposed if it 
can be determined it would meet the requirements for a variance request.  
Jesse Rohr explained that the Board can consider setting a public hearing or not to set a 
public hearing if it does not meet the requirements for a variance request or provide other 
alternatives. 



 

 7

 
Jerry Sonntag asked if the sign would be set back further than the existing sign.  Jesse Rohr 
answered that it would be about 60 feet north of the existing sign and about 2 feet further 
back from the right-of-way.  
 
Lou Caplan asked if the “C-O” district would exist in the new development code.   
 
Jesse Rohr answered that he would provide an update to answer that question.  He 
stated that the sign regulations have been thoroughly reviewed with input from those in 
the field.   
 
Lou Caplan stated that he was in favor of setting a public hearing since it is necessary to 
have one for this case even though it does not seem necessary since the proposed sign 
would be the same distance from the street as the other signs along Canterbury.  
  
Jerry Sonntag moved, Gerald Befort seconded the motion to set a public hearing for 
January 13, 2016 for the variance request from Hays Medical Center for an eight foot 
variance to reduce the front setback for a monument sign from ten feet to two feet on 
the property at 2509 Canterbury Dr.    
 
Vote:  Ayes:        Lou Caplan 
                                           Gerald Befort  
                                          Jerry Sonntag 

Tom Lippert                                           
                                            
Jesse Rohr explained about the public notification process.  
 
Shae Veach, V.P. Regional Operations of Hays Medical Center asked if the sign would 
have to be moved to adhere to the proposed new regulations when they are 
implemented.  
 
Jerry Sonntag answered that it would only be affected if the sign would be destroyed; the 
replacement sign would have to be moved to adhere to the new regulations.  
 
Tom Lippert pointed out the importance for this type of case to be reviewed in the 
proposed new development code.  
 
5.     OFF AGENDA ITEMS:  None 
 
6.     ADJOURNMENT:  Lou Caplan adjourned the meeting at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Submitted by: Linda K. Bixenman, Administrative Assistant, 
                         Planning, Inspection and Enforcement  



City of Hays 
Planning Inspection Enforcement 

Board of Zoning Appeals Action Report 

AGENDA ITEM: Setback Variance Application #13-15  

ADDRESS:   2509 Canterbury Dr. 

OWNER:   Hays Medical Center 

TYPE OF REVIEW: Variance 

PRESENTED BY:  Jesse Rohr, P.I.E. Superintendent 

DATE PREPARED: January 5, 2015 

MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2015 

 
SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the front yard setback from 10 feet 
to 2 feet, a variance of 8 feet to allow the placement of a business sign on the 
property located at 2509 Canterbury Dr. (see further details below and attached site 
drawing).  Staff recommends approval of the request as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

 The applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the required front yard 
setback from 10 feet to 2 feet, a variance of 8 feet to allow the placement of a 
sign on the property located at 2509 Canterbury Dr. 

 This site/structure is being remodeled/reconstructed as part of a large 
redevelopment project. 

 
 Setback Required Applicant Proposed 

Front Yard Min. 10’ (For signage) 
 

2’ 
 

Side Yard 0 N/A 
Rear Yard 0 N/A 

 
 
 
STANDARDS OF EVALUATION: 
 
  Per State Statute 12-759 and City Ordinance Sec. 71-1250 



 Page 2 

 
 The BZA has the authority to grant a variance if a literal enforcement of the 

provisions of the adopted regulations, will, in an individual case, result in 
unnecessary hardship, provided: 

o The spirit of the regulations shall be observed 
o Public safety and welfare secured 
o Substantial justice shall be done 

 The applicant must show that the property was acquired in good faith and that 
the variance is needed due to extraordinary or exceptional circumstances of 
the property such as exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or shape of the lot 

 Before granting a variance on the basis of unusual difficulty or unreasonable 
hardship, there must be finding by the Board that all of the following conditions 
exist: 

 
a. Uniqueness of the property not ordinarily found in the same zone or 

district and not created by willful action of the owner 
 

Staff Analysis:  This property is somewhat unique due to its zoning district.  
This property falls within the C-O zoning district (Office and Institution).  The 
C-O district is one of the only districts, and is the only commercial district, that 
requires a front setback for a sign of this small stature.  The other signs along 
Canterbury, for various reasons, are nearly all placed on or very near the front 
setback. 
 
b. The granting of the variance will not adversely affect the rights of adjacent 

property owners 
 
Staff Analysis:  This proposed addition would not appear to have any 
adverse affects on the rights of nearby property owners.  The existing sign, 
which will be removed and replaced by this sign, already has a setback similar 
to the one proposed by the new sign. 
 
c. The strict application of the code will constitute unnecessary hardship 

upon the property owner 
 

Staff Analysis:  Since other signs within this office corridor along Canterbury 
are placed at or near the front setback, placing the sign back to 10 feet per 
regulation could constitute a hardship by making visibility of this medical office 
more difficult. 
 
d. The variance will not adversely affect the public health, safety, morals, 

order, convenience, propriety, or general welfare 
 

Staff Analysis:  This proposed sign would not appear to adversely affect the 
public health, safety, morals, order, convenience, propriety, or general 
welfare. 



 Page 3 

 
e. The granting of the variance desired will not be opposed to the general 

spirit and intent of the regulations 
 

Staff Analysis:  The proposed sign location and variance request would not 
seem to go against the spirit and intent of the regulations. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the request as submitted. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Variance application 
 Variance justification from owner 
 Picture(s) and Map(s) 

 



jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Line





jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Callout
Existing Sign

jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Callout
Proposed Sign



jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Callout
Existing Sign

jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Callout
Approx. Location of Proposed Sign























THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



Board of Zoning Appeals Action Report 

AGENDA ITEM: Setback Variance Application #01-16  

ADDRESS:   210 E 17th 

OWNER:   James and Shawn Mulkey 

TYPE OF REVIEW: Variance 

PRESENTED BY:  Jesse Rohr, P.I.E. Superintendent 

DATE PREPARED: January 5, 2016 

MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2016 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the side yard setback from 7’ to 5’, a 
variance of 2’ and also allow a reduced distance from the house of 1’ from the 
required 5’ to allow the reconstruction of a 15 x 20 carport on the property located at 
210 E 17th (see further details below and attached site drawing).  Staff recommends 
setting a public hearing for the February 10, 2106 Board of Zoning meeting for the 
request as submitted if it is found to be warranted based on discussion. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

 The applicant is requesting a variance on 1 side: 
o East Side – 7’ to 5’ 

 Applicant wishes to construct a 15’ x 20’ carport on the property 
 Applicant also wishes to have the carport as close as I’ from the existing 

house. 
 Due to an honest mistake, this carport was erected on site without proper 

approval due to the owner not realizing the requirements.  The fact the carport 
already exists should not be considered when determining if the variance 
should be granted or not. 

 
 Setback Required Applicant Proposed 

Front Yard N/A N/A 
 

Side Yard 7’ 5’ 
Rear Yard N/A N/A 

Other Structures 5’ 1’ 

City of Hays 
Planning Inspection Enforcement 



 Page 2 

 
STANDARDS OF EVALUATION: 
 
  Per State Statute 12-759 and City Ordinance Sec. 71-1250 
 

 The BZA has the authority to grant a variance if a literal enforcement of the 
provisions of the adopted regulations, will, in an individual case, result in 
unnecessary hardship, provided: 

o The spirit of the regulations shall be observed 
o Public safety and welfare secured 
o Substantial justice shall be done 

 The applicant must show that the property was acquired in good faith and that 
the variance is needed due to extraordinary or exceptional circumstances of 
the property such as exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or shape of the lot 

 Before granting a variance on the basis of unusual difficulty or unreasonable 
hardship, there must be finding by the Board that all of the following conditions 
exist: 

 
a. Uniqueness of the property not ordinarily found in the same zone or 

district and not created by willful action of the owner 
 

Staff Analysis:  While the uniqueness of this property is not very apparent 
when compared to homes in the surrounding neighborhood, the variance 
request in itself is minimal as compared to other similar requests for carports 
in the past.  Also, as you look at the site, it is obvious that the existing 
accessory buildings and large trees on the property make it challenging to 
place the carport elsewhere on the lot. 
 
b. The granting of the variance will not adversely affect the rights of adjacent 

property owners 
 
Staff Analysis:  It is staff’s opinion that this request will have minimal impact 
on the one property owner adjacent to the east property line of the subject 
property. 
 
c. The strict application of the code will constitute unnecessary hardship 

upon the property owner 
 

Staff Analysis:  As stated in the application submitted by the owner, other 
areas on the lot were considered and due to the fact that the concrete 
driveway is already in place, this location was chosen as the best option while 
trying to have a minimal impact on surrounding properties and not creating 
undue work and cost on the part of the owner. 
 
d. The variance will not adversely affect the public health, safety, morals, 

order, convenience, propriety, or general welfare 



 Page 3 

 

Staff Analysis:  This variance should not adversely affect the public health, 
safety, morals, order, convenience, propriety, or general welfare. 
 
e. The granting of the variance desired will not be opposed to the general 

spirit and intent of the regulations 
 

Staff Analysis:  The granting of a variance for the carport, with approval of a 
variance as submitted, should not be opposed to the general spirit and intent 
of the zoning regulations. 

 
OPTIONS: 
 

 Set a public hearing for the February 10, 2016 BZA meeting 
 Do not move this forward for a public hearing 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The owner of this property is attempting to utilize an older lot and is requesting a 
small change to accommodate a vehicle and be able to better utilize the property for 
the future.  Based on the analysis above, staff recommends setting a public hearing 
for the February 10, 2016 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting and would further 
recommend approval of the variance request. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Variance application 
 Variance justification and diagram from owner 
 Images/Maps 

 



jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Line



jrohr
Polygonal Line

jrohr
Callout
210 E 17th





jrohr
Text Box
01-16













THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



City of Hays 
Planning Inspection Enforcement 

Board of Zoning Appeals Action Report 

AGENDA ITEM: Setback Variance Application #02-16  

ADDRESS:   1310 W 44th  

OWNER:   Brent and Jill Goertzen 

TYPE OF REVIEW: Variance 

PRESENTED BY:  Jesse Rohr, P.I.E. Superintendent 

DATE PREPARED: January 5, 2016 

MEETING DATE:  January 13, 2016 

 
SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the side yard setback from 7 ½ feet 
to 5 feet’, a variance of 2 ½ feet to allow the construction of a detached 20’ x 24’ shed 
on the property located at 1310 W 44th (see further details below and attached site 
drawing).  Staff recommends setting a public hearing for the February 10, 2016 
Board of Zoning meeting for the request as submitted if it is found to be warranted 
based on discussion. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

 The applicant is requesting a variance on 1 side: 
o East Side – 7 1/2’ to 5’ 

 Applicant wishes to construct a detached shed on the property 
 A similar variance (5’ setback) was issued in 2015 for the neighboring 

property at 1308 W 44th, setting precedence for this neighborhood. 
 

 Setback Required Applicant Proposed 
Front Yard N/A N/A 

 
Side Yard 7 ½’ 5’ 
Rear Yard 5’ 5’ 

Other Structures 5’ >5’ 
 
 



 Page 2 

 
STANDARDS OF EVALUATION: 
 
  Per State Statute 12-759 and City Ordinance Sec. 71-1250 
 

 The BZA has the authority to grant a variance if a literal enforcement of the 
provisions of the adopted regulations, will, in an individual case, result in 
unnecessary hardship, provided: 

o The spirit of the regulations shall be observed 
o Public safety and welfare secured 
o Substantial justice shall be done 

 The applicant must show that the property was acquired in good faith and that 
the variance is needed due to extraordinary or exceptional circumstances of 
the property such as exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or shape of the lot 

 Before granting a variance on the basis of unusual difficulty or unreasonable 
hardship, there must be finding by the Board that all of the following conditions 
exist: 

 
a. Uniqueness of the property not ordinarily found in the same zone or 

district and not created by willful action of the owner 
 

Staff Analysis:  It is not immediately clear what is unique about this property.  
This lot is very typical of others in the area regarding lot size.  The applicant 
states that the layout of the house, including exterior door and window 
locations has been a determining factor in placement of the proposed shed.   
 
b. The granting of the variance will not adversely affect the rights of adjacent 

property owners 
 
Staff Analysis:  It does not seem that the 2 ½ foot variance being requested 
would adversely affect nearby property owners. 
 
c. The strict application of the code will constitute unnecessary hardship 

upon the property owner 
 

Staff Analysis:  Again, this is a lot that is very consistent with others in the 
neighborhood.  A smaller shed could be considered that would be able to 
meet the setbacks and not require a variance while still maintaining the yard 
space the applicant desires.  However, the variance being requested is 
minimal in the grand scheme of things. 
 
d. The variance will not adversely affect the public health, safety, morals, 

order, convenience, propriety, or general welfare 
 



 Page 3 

Staff Analysis:  It is unlikely that the variance would adversely affect the 
public health, safety, morals, order, convenience, propriety, or general 
welfare. 
 
e. The granting of the variance desired will not be opposed to the general 

spirit and intent of the regulations 
 

Staff Analysis:  The granting of a variance for the proposed shed, with 
approval of a variance as submitted, would not likely be opposed to the 
general spirit and intent of the zoning regulations. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
After discussion about these items with the owner, if the BZA feels a hearing is 
warranted, a hearing may be set for the February 10, 2016 Board of Zoning Appeals 
meeting.  
 
OPTIONS: 
 

 Set a public hearing for the February 10, 2016 BZA meeting 
 Do not move this forward for a public hearing 

  
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Variance application 
 Variance justification and site drawing(s) from owner 
 Images/Maps 

 



jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Callout
SUBJECT AREA









jrohr
Polygonal Line

jrohr
Oval



jrohr
Polygonal Line

jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Rectangle

jrohr
Callout
Proposed Shed




